
 

Alameda County Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Services 
4985 Broder Blvd, Dublin CA  94568 ● (925) 803-7802 ● www.ebrcsa.org 

 
  

Participating agencies include Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the following cities and special districts: Alameda, Albany, Antioch, Berkeley, Brentwood, Clayton, 
Concord, Danville, Dublin, El Cerrito, Emeryville, Fremont, Hayward, Hercules, Lafayette, Livermore, Martinez, Moraga, Newark, Oakley, Pinole, Pittsburg, Pleasant Hill, Pleasanton, 

Richmond, San Leandro, San Pablo, San Ramon, Union City, Walnut Creek, East Bay Regional Park District, Kensington Police Community Services District, Livermore Amador Valley Transit 
Authority, Moraga-Orinda Fire District, Rodeo-Hercules Fire District, San Ramon Valley Fire District, California Department of Transportation, Ohlone Community College District, Contra Costa 

Community College District, Dublin-San Ramon Services District and University of California, Berkeley 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING    DATE:  September 13, 2019 
TIME:  9:30 a.m. 
PLACE: Alameda County Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Services,  

Room 1013 
  4985 Broder Blvd., Dublin, CA 94568 

 
AGENDA 

              
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 

2. Public Comments (Meeting Open to the Public): 
At this time, the public is permitted to address the Committee on items within the Committee’s subject matter jurisdiction that do not 
appear on the agenda.  Please limit comments to a maximum of three (3) minutes.  If you wish to comment on an item that is on the 
agenda, please wait until the item is read for consideration. 
 

3. Approval of Minutes of the April 5, 2019, Operations Committee Meeting   
 

4. Renewal of Agreement with Contra Costa County Department of Information 
Technology for Two Years  
 

5. Renewal of Agreement with CSI for Engineering Consulting Services for Three Years  
 

6. Review and Make Recommendation on Capitol Replacement Project Proposals 
 

7. Recommend a Member of the Operations Committee to Assist in Evaluation of Executive 
Director 
 

8. Discussion of EBRCSA Microwave Upgrade and Transition to Multiprotocol Label 
Switching (MPLS) 
 

9. Discussion of EBRCSA Interference Analysis 5G 
 

10.  Agenda Items for Next Meeting 
 

11. Adjournment 
 



This AGENDA is posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) 
If requested, pursuant to Government Code Section 54953.2, this agenda shall be made available in appropriate alternative 
formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 
12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof.  To make a request for disability-related 
modification or accommodation, please contact the EBRCSA at (925) 803-7802 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting. 
I hereby certify that the attached agenda was posted 72 hours before the noted meeting. 

 
Tom McCarthy, Executive Director  
September 8, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 



 
Participating agencies include Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the following cities and special districts: Alameda, Albany, Antioch, Berkeley, Brentwood, 

Clayton, Concord, Danville, Dublin, El Cerrito, Emeryville, Fremont, Hayward, Hercules, Lafayette, Livermore, Martinez, Moraga, Newark, Oakley, Pinole, 
Pittsburg, Pleasant Hill, Pleasanton, Richmond, San Leandro, San Pablo, San Ramon, Union City, Walnut Creek, East Bay Regional Park District, Kensington 
Police Community Services District, Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority, Moraga-Orinda Fire District, Rodeo-Hercules Fire District, San Ramon Valley 

Fire District, California Department of Transportation, Ohlone Community College District, Contra Costa Community College District, Dublin-San Ramon Services 
District and University of California, Berkeley 

 
 
 
  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3. 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING DATE:  September 13, 2019 
 
TO:   Operations Committee 
   East Bay Regional Communications System Authority (EBRCSA) 
 
 
FROM: Tom McCarthy, Executive Director 
   East Bay Regional Communications System Authority 
 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes of the April 5, 2019 Regular Operations Committee Meeting 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Approve the minutes of the April 5, 2019 Regular Operations Committee meeting. 
 
SUMMARY/DISCUSSION:  
 
The Operations Committee will consider approval of the minutes of the April 5, 2019 Regular 
Operations Committee meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is recommended that the Committee approve the minutes of the April 5, 2019 Regular 
Operations Committee meeting. 



 

Alameda County Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Services 
4985 Broder Blvd, Dublin CA  94568 ● (925) 803-7802 ● www.ebrcsa.org 

 
 

Participating agencies include Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the following cities and special districts: Alameda, Albany, Antioch, Berkeley, Brentwood, Clayton, 
Concord, Danville, Dublin, El Cerrito, Emeryville, Fremont, Hayward, Hercules, Lafayette, Livermore, Martinez, Moraga, Newark, Oakley, Pinole, Pittsburg, Pleasant Hill, Pleasanton, 

Richmond, San Leandro, San Pablo, San Ramon, Union City, Walnut Creek, East Bay Regional Park District, Kensington Police Community Services District, Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority, 
Moraga-Orinda Fire District, Rodeo-Hercules Fire District, San Ramon Valley Fire District, California Department of Transportation, Ohlone Community College District, Contra Costa Community College 

District, Dublin-San Ramon Services District and University of California, Berkeley 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING    DATE:  April 5, 2019 
TIME:  11:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Alameda County Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Services,  

Room 1013 
  4985 Broder Blvd., Dublin, CA 94568 

 
MINUTES 

              
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call:  11:03 a.m. 
 

Committee Members Present: 
M. Casten, Undersheriff, Contra Costa County Sheriff’s Office 
T. Acosta, City Manager, Union City 
J. Calabrigo, Town Manager, Town of Danville 
T. Dupuis, Chief Information Officer, Alameda County 
S. Perkins, Councilmember, City of San Ramon 
C. Silva, Councilmember,  
D. Twa, County Administrator, Contra Costa County 
 
Staff: 
T. McCarthy, Executive Director 
C. Boyer, Assistant Controller, Alameda County 
C. Soto, Administrative Assistant 
 
Public: 
G. Poole, Motorola 

 
2. Public Comments (Meeting Open to the Public):  None. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes of the February 22, 2019, Finance Committee Meeting 

 
On motion of D. Twa, seconded by S. Perkins and by unanimous vote, the Finance 
Committee approved the minutes of the February 22, 2019 Finance Committee meeting.   

 

http://www.ebrcsa.org/


Page 2 of 5 

4. Renewal of Agreement with Motorola for Four Years of Monitoring, Intrusion 
Detection, Technical Support, Preventive Maintenance and Infrastructure Response 
for Master Site 
 
Director McCarthy introduced Craig Boyer, Assistant Controller, Alameda County as the 
new auditor for the Authority. 
 
Director McCarthy presented the Staff Report and advised that this agreement would 
provide 24-hour, 7-days-a-week, 365-days-a-year coverage and monitoring for the core 
of the System.  The proposed agreement was for four years to line up with the 
Authority’s SUA agreement with Motorola.  Some of the associated cost increases with 
the agreement were because of the addition of new agencies’ equipment.  The first year 
of that equipment was covered by warranty, now they were included in the total.  This 
also includes cyber security for some 170 computers that were all possible points of 
unlawful entry into the System.  This agreement included security patches and updates 
that will now be downloaded by Motorola to all the appropriate equipment.  This also 
brought in Motorola on preventative maintenance on the System’s six prime sites which 
link into the Master Site.  Motorola proposed a 7.5% cost increase to this agreement 
starting in year one, and spanning over the four years of the agreement. 
 
Bm. Calabrigo asked why the increase was not phased in over the four years.  How much 
of the increase was an increase in services and how much was for added service?  Why 
could they not look at something that was phased in over four years, versus an immediate 
7.5% increase? 
 
Bm. Silva stated the cost of living and the CPI, nationally, were not 7.5%.   
 
11:14 a.m. Bm. Haggerty arrived. 
 
Bm. Silva stated that the Authority should be concerned about proposed AB1332. It was 
a divestiture that said everyone across the State, including CalPERS, must divest itself of 
any investment or equipment or ownership of any product that also sells to Homeland 
Security.  Motorola, as well as Microsoft, sold to Homeland Security.  If the Authority 
were to go to another company, they would have to rebuild the System.  They needed to 
get Public Safety involved.  This was a serious issue that needed to be discussed because 
Motorola was the Authority’s single source provider. 
 
Director McCarthy asked if the Committee wanted him to go back to Motorola to 
renegotiate the agreement. 
 
Bm. Calabrigo stated one suggestion was if they were discussing 7.5% by the fourth year, 
it could be an increase of 1.25% a year, for the four years.   
 
Director McCarthy stated the previous quote was a 5% increase per year. 
 
Bm. Perkins stated the Authority’s income did not change unless they did a rate change.  
If there was a mechanism that raised the Authority’s income by 1 or 2% every year, so 
that the income changed with the expenses, he could see doing that.   
 



Page 3 of 5 

 By consensus, the Board of Directors instructed Director McCarthy to continue 
discussions with Motorola to negotiate a contract with a 3-1/2% to 4% increase in the 
first year, and smaller increases, such as 1%, for the following three years. 
 

5. Renewal of Annual Service Agreement with Motorola for System Manager 
 

Director McCarthy presented the Staff Report and advised that this agreement’s increase 
was close to 10% for one year, and included COLA increases for Motorola staff that were 
assigned to the System.  This included the person that attended all the System’s TAC 
meetings and oversaw issues such as Antioch’s site, somewhat of a project manager. 
There was also the person that takes care of the Master Site, a specialist.  The other 
person was the 24-hour answering point in Schaumburg, IL, dispatch services. 
 
Boardmembers and Executive Director discussed the rate increase and the possibility of 
the term of the agreement being tied to the same timeline as the SUA.  This had been a 
year-to-year agreement.  They agreed to ask for a four-year agreement to tie in with the 
timing and negotiation of the previously discussed contract.   
 
The Boardmembers directed Director McCarthy to return to negotiations with Motorola 
to discuss a lower level of increase, because of the same concerns as the previous item.  
They suggested that it also be a four-year contract. 
 
G. Poole, Motorola representative, provided public comment on this item. 

 
6. Budget Review FY 2019/2020 

 
Director McCarthy presented the Staff Report and advised that Craig Boyer would 
present the FY 2019/20 budget. 
 
Mr. Boyer stated on the revenue side there was a $2 increase per radio, per month in 
operating payments that was approved by the Board, that would increase revenues by 
approximately $500,000 for the year; being offset against the loss of CalTrans 
contributing service payments by approximately $110,000 per year.  On the expense side, 
the most significant changes were the Motorola agreements just discussed.  This made up 
the increases on the expenditure side.  The only other increase was for anticipated 
increase in costs of PG&E utilities.  Other than those items, the numbers were fairly 
consistent with this fiscal year’s budget. 
 
Bm. Perkins asked, in reference to the Ten-Year Cash Flow Projection, there were a 
number of increases in the out years, what was the basis for the increases in operating 
payments?   
 
Mr. Boyer stated they applied an assumption of a 3% increase per year. 
 
Bm. Perkins stated that would require an increase in rates as that was income.  That was 
significant as the Authority had only had one increase.  He was not sure it was a good 
assumption. 
 



Page 4 of 5 

Director McCarthy stated there would be a second increase July 1, 2019.  There was also 
the capital replacement plan needed that would change the entire Ten-Year Cash Flow 
Projection.   
 
Bm. Perkins asked about the budget for generators which was increased for major 
maintenance every three years.  Why was it not shown in the budget?  The number on the 
generator line needed to be increased.   
 
Director McCarthy stated, as requested, he had an RFP ready to go out for generators and 
it would include maintenance, so the numbers may change again.   
 
Bm. Perkins asked if in regard to the debt service reserve, did the service payments 
expire in June 2027?  Would that still be collected after the debt was paid? 
 
Director McCarthy stated it was different than the operating payment and that would be a 
Board decision.  It would need to be removed from the last two years on the Ten-Year 
Cash Flow Projection. 
 
Bm. Silva stated they had always been looking at cashflow. It was time to look at the 
long-term forecast and the capital replacement plan.   
 
Mr. Boyer stated they could consolidate some of the operating expenses and show it as 
one line item.  
 
Bm. Perkins stated he would show zero increase in operating payments unless the 
Authority had authorized future increases, or there was a policy of “X” percent per year. 
 
On motion of Bm. Silva, seconded by Bm. Perkins and by unanimous vote, the Finance 
Committee approved for recommendation to the full Board, the Resolution Adopting an 
Administrative Budget for Fiscal Year 2019/2020, pending updated numbers in the 
maintenance line item per the two service agreements that were continuing to be 
negotiated with Motorola.   
 

7. Update on Capitol Replacement Report 
 

Director McCarthy presented the Staff Report and advised it was very difficult to find 
vendors to respond to the request for a Capitol Replacement Report.  He had received one 
response from Mark Lavonte and Kim Allen and was waiting for a second response. 
 
Bm. Perkins asked was the work to identify all the capital equipment pieces, apply an 
aging to each, and a potential replacement cost.  
 
Director McCarthy responded yes, and it would also include future technology, as it was 
what drove much of the cost.  The System was very current with technology, but what 
was needed was to determine what the Authority owned, what each member agency 
owned and what was the life span on the equipment owned by the Authority. 

 



Page 5 of 5 

8.  Agenda Items for Next Meeting 
 

Director McCarthy stated at the next meeting he would be discussing the microwave.   
 
Bm. Silva asked for the baseline forecast with known assumptions. 
 
Bm. Perkins asked for an update on the TDMA installation. 
 
Director McCarthy stated all the equipment had been installed and tested.  The 
information was being shared with CSI, and CSI was signing non-disclosure agreements 
this week.  Alameda County was at 12% of having all radios replaced/upgraded; Contra 
Costa County was getting it done. Alameda County upgrades would go up to the June 
2020 deadline.  He would be speaking to the Alameda County Police Chiefs on June 6 to 
give them a reminder about timeline, and would speak to other member agencies in the 
future. 
 
Bm. Perkins asked that TDMA Upgrade status be an item on the Agenda every meeting 
until June 2020. 
 
Bm. Acosta announced he would retire in June 2019.  The Alameda County City 
Manager’s Association would select a new Boardmember. 
 

9. Adjournment: 
 
With no further business coming before the Finance Committee, the meeting was 
adjourned at 11:59 a.m.   
 



 
 

Participating agencies include Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the following cities and special districts: Alameda, Albany, Antioch, Berkeley, Brentwood, 
Clayton, Concord, Danville, Dublin, El Cerrito, Emeryville, Fremont, Hayward, Hercules, Lafayette, Livermore, Martinez, Moraga, Newark, Oakley, Pinole, 

Pittsburg, Pleasant Hill, Pleasanton, Richmond, San Leandro, San Pablo, San Ramon, Union City, Walnut Creek, East Bay Regional Park District, Kensington 
Police Community Services District, Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority, Moraga-Orinda Fire District, Rodeo-Hercules Fire District, San Ramon Valley 

Fire District, California Department of Transportation, Ohlone Community College District, Contra Costa Community College District, Dublin-San Ramon Services 
District and University of California, Berkeley 

 

Alameda County Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Services 
4985 Broder Blvd, Dublin CA  94568 ● (925) 803-7802 ● www.ebrcsa.org 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4. 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 
MEETING DATE:  September 13, 2019 

 
TO:   Operations Committee 
   East Bay Regional Communications System Authority (EBRCSA) 
 
 
FROM: Thomas G. McCarthy, Executive Director 
   East Bay Regional Communications System Authority 
 
 
SUBJECT: Services Agreement with Contra Costa County Department of Information 

Technology  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Review, and if Committee agrees, make a recommendation to the Board of Directors to 
amend/extend an agreement with Contra Costa County Department of Information Technology 
to provide Communications Operations Support Services, radio services, installation, and 
maintenance of radio sites and 911 Dispatch centers that are part of the East Bay Regional 
Communications System Authority.   
 
SUMMARY/DISCUSSION:  
 
The Contra Costa County Department of Information Technology has a contract, attachment 
“A”, with East Bay Regional Communications System Authority (EBRCSA) to provide radio 
services, installation, and maintenance of radio sites and 911 Dispatch centers that are part of 
EBRCSA.  The value of the contract, $1,360,000, had been increased through amendments.  
Costa County Department of Information Technology has requested the value of the contract be 
increased to $1,820,000.00 and extended to June 30, 2021, attachment “B”.  The increase in the 
value of the contract over the two years will be $460,000.00.  The amendment to the contract 
will allow them to perform work for EBRCSA until the contract expires or is amended again in 



 

 

June 2021.  Contra Costa County Department of Information Technology will continue to bill 
monthly for time and materials per the contract.  The increase to the contract is necessary to 
compensate for the labor rates and cost of materials used performing the work. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The value of the contract had been increased through amendments and was $1,360,000.00.  
Costa County Department of Information Technology has requested the value of the contract be 
increased to $1,820,000.00 and extended to June 30, 2021, see attachment “B”.  The increase in 
the value of the contract over the two years will be $460,000.00.  The approved FY 2019/2020 
EBRCSA Budget had approved $200,000.00 for the Contra Costa County Department of 
Information Technology’s services.  The amended contract will require a budget change and 
addition of $30,000.00 for the FY 2019/2020-line item for the COCO general maintenance. 
 
The increase of the Services Agreement can be covered in projected operating revenue and will 
not require an increase in the user fees for EBRCSA members. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is recommended the Committee make a recommendation to the Board of Directors that 
EBRCSA amend/extend their current contract with the Contra Costa County Department of 
Information Technology and increase the contract value from $1,360,000.00 to $1,820,000.00, an 
increase of $460,000.00, through June 30, 2021. 
 
The funding for the increase in the value of the contract is available in the maintenance budget.  
 
Attachments:  
“A” – Current Contract with Contra Costa County Department of Information Technology 
“B” – Request for Contract modification 
“C” - EBRCSA Expenditure Detail FY 2019-2020 































































 
 

Participating agencies include Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the following cities and special districts: Alameda, Albany, Antioch, Berkeley, Brentwood, 
Clayton, Concord, Danville, Dublin, El Cerrito, Emeryville, Fremont, Hayward, Hercules, Lafayette, Livermore, Martinez, Moraga, Newark, Oakley, Pinole, 

Pittsburg, Pleasant Hill, Pleasanton, Richmond, San Leandro, San Pablo, San Ramon, Union City, Walnut Creek, East Bay Regional Park District, Kensington 
Police Community Services District, Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority, Moraga-Orinda Fire District, Rodeo-Hercules Fire District, San Ramon Valley 

Fire District, California Department of Transportation, Ohlone Community College District, Contra Costa Community College District, Dublin-San Ramon Services 
District and University of California, Berkeley 

 

Alameda County Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Services 
4985 Broder Blvd, Dublin CA  94568 ● (925) 803-7802 ● www.ebrcsa.org 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 5. 

 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

MEETING DATE:  September 13, 2019 
 
TO:   Operations Committee 
   East Bay Regional Communications System Authority (EBRCSA) 
 
 
FROM: Tom McCarthy, Executive Director 
   East Bay Regional Communications System Authority 
 
 
SUBJECT: Contract with CSI Telecommunications for Technical Services 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Review, and if Committee agrees, make a recommendation to the Board of Directors to enter 
into a contract with CSI to provide technological and engineering support services to East Bay 
Regional Communications System Authority (EBRCSA) for a period of three years.  CSI has 
been providing EBRCSA technological services, engineering services, and FCC Licensing for 
the past year.  In the past, the services were provided through a contract between CSI and Contra 
Costa County Department of Information Technology. 
 
SUMMARY/DISCUSSION:  
 
CSI Telecommunications, Inc. is a team of Consulting Engineers who are subject matter experts 
in radio communication, microwave system, and radio interference.  CSI has assisted EBRCSA 
in securing Radio Frequencies from the FCC for East Bay Regional Communication System 
Authority for several years.  CSI Engineers have also provided subject matter expertise in the 
transition to TDMA and other changes to the EBRCSA system. EBRCSA had a one-year 
contract with CSI and the contract has now expired. 
 



 

 

The contract with CSI Telecommunications is for time and materials which would not exceed 
$200,000 per Fiscal Year.  In the FY 18/19 CSI billed EBRCSA $56,000.00 for services 
provided, 
 
CSI has stated the following will be the hourly rate for services for each fiscal year: 
FY 2019/2020 - $215 per hour (current rate) 
FY 2020/2021- $220 per hour 
FY 2021/2022 - $225 per hour 
 
A copy of the proposed contract provided by CSI is included as Attachment “A”. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
If the Operations Committee recommends entering into a contract with CSI, a Budget Change 
will not be necessary.  The approved EBRCSA Expenditure Detail for FY 2019/2020 has in the 
maintenance section $200,000.00 included for CSI. 
 
The contract with CSI is covered by operating revenue and will not require an increase in the 
user fees for EBRCSA members.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is recommended that the Committee make a recommendation to the Board of Directors that 
EBRCSA enter into a contract, as attached, with CSI Telecommunications for specialized 
Engineering services. 
 
 Attachments: 
 
Attachment “A” – CSI Contract 
Attachment “B” - EBRCSA Expenditure Detail FY 2019-2020 



EBRCSA    STANDARD CONTRACT      

    

1. Contract Identification. 

Subject: Telecommunications Engineering, Analysis and Frequency Services 

 

2. Parties.   The East Bay Regional Communications System Authority (EBRCSA) and the following 
named Contractor mutually agree and promise as follows: 

Contractor: CSI Telecommunications, Inc. 

Capacity: California Corporation 

Address: 750 Battery Street, Suite 350, San Francisco, CA 94111 

 

3. Term.  The effective date of this Contract is June 1, 2019.  It terminates on June 30, 2022 unless 
sooner terminated as provided herein. 

 

4. Payment Limit.  EBRCSA’s total payments to Contractor under this Contract shall not exceed  

$ 200,000.00 per fiscal year.  

 

5. EBRCSA’s Obligations. EBRCSA shall make to the Contractor those payments described in the 
Payment Provisions attached hereto which are incorporated herein by reference, subject to all the terms 
and conditions contained or incorporated herein. 

 

6. Contractor’s Obligations.  Contractor shall provide those services and carry out that work described 
in the Service Plan attached hereto which is incorporated herein by reference, subject to all the terms and 
conditions contained or incorporated herein. 

 

7. General and Special Conditions.  This Contract is subject to the General Conditions and Special 
Conditions (if any) attached hereto, which are incorporated herein by reference. 

 

8. Project.  This Contract implements in whole or in part the following described Project, the application 
and approval documents of which are incorporated herein by reference. 

N/A 

 

 

Page 1 of 11



EBRCSA    STANDARD CONTRACT      

  

9. Legal Authority.  This Contract is entered into under and subject to the following legal authorities:  

      Government Code Section 31000                                                                                                                                                               

 

10. Signatures.  These signatures attest the parties’ agreement hereto: 

 

 

EAST BAY REGIONAL RADIO COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM AUTHORITY 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

 

By: ___________________________________________ 

      Greg Ahern 

 

 

CONTRACTOR 

Name of business entity:   

CSI Telecommunications, Inc. 

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

       (Signature of individual or officer)                            

Catherine F. Newman, Corporate Secretary/Treasurer 

       (Print name and Title) 

 

Page 2 of 11



EBRCSA    PAYMENT PROVISIONS      

           

1. Payment Amounts.  Subject to the Payment Limit of this Contract and subject to the following 
Payment Provisions, EBRCSA will pay Contractor the following fee as full compensation for all services, 
work, expenses or costs provided or incurred by Contractor:               

[Check one alternative only.] 

  a.  $     monthly, or 

 b.  $   per unit, as defined in the Service Plan, or 

 c.  $  after completion of all obligations and conditions herein. 

X d.  Other:  As set forth in Section C (Payment Provisions) of the attached Service Plan.  

2. Payment Demands. Contractor shall submit written demands for payment on their stationary in a 
manner and form acceptable to EBRCSA .  Contractor shall submit said demands for payment no 
later than 30 days from the end of the month in which the contract services upon which such 
demand is based were actually rendered.  Upon approval of payment demands by EBRCSA's 
Executive Director, or his designee, EBRCSA will make payments as specified in Paragraph 1. 
(Payment Amounts) above. 

3. Penalty for Late Submission.  If EBRCSA is unable to obtain reimbursement from the State of 
California as a result of Contractor’s failure to submit to EBRCSA a timely demand for payment 
as specified in Paragraph 2. (Payment Demands) above, EBRCSA shall not pay Contractor for 
such services to the extent EBRCSA's recovery of funding is prejudiced by the delay even though 
such services were fully provided. 

 4. Right to Withhold.  EBRCSA has the right to withhold payment to Contractor when, in the 
opinion of EBRCSA expressed in writing to Contractor, (a) Contractor's performance, in whole or 
in part, either has not been carried out or is insufficiently documented, (b) Contractor has 
neglected, failed or refused to furnish information or to cooperate with any inspection, review or 
audit of its program, work or records, or (c) Contractor has failed to sufficiently itemize or 
document its demand(s) for payment. 

 5. Audit Exceptions.  Contractor agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to, and/or 
complying with any audit exceptions by appropriate county, state or federal audit agencies 
resulting from its performance of this Contract.  Within 30 days of demand, Contractor shall pay 
EBRCSA the full amount of EBRCSA's obligation, if any, to the state and/or federal government 
resulting from any audit exceptions, to the extent such are attributable to Contractor's failure to 
perform properly any of its obligations under this Contract. 

 

 

 Initials:      _________          _________            
                                                            Contractor            EBRCSA 

Page 3 of 11



Initials:           ________        ________        
                       Contractor       EBRCSA      

 
Service Plan Outline 

 
EBRCSA SERVICE PLAN   
   
 
A. Contractor’s Obligations:  During the term of this Contract, Contractor will work with 

EBRCSA employees, under the direction of the Executive Director, to provide 
telecommunications permitting assistance, Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") 
license application engineering/frequency coordination, and preparation of specifications for 
EBRCSA’s Microwave and Public Safety Radio Systems. 
 

B. Scope of Work:  Under the terms of this Service Plan, Contractor will perform the following 
professional services, which include but are not limited to the following: 

 
1. Radio frequency coordination, permitting, application, selection, radio site 

construction period filing, monitoring of all County microwave and land mobile radio 
frequency licensing; 

2. Resolution of radio frequency interference reports or complaints against EBRCSA; 

3. Creation and or filing of radio frequency interference reports on EBRCSA’s behalf; 

4. Radio frequency coordination for application of new frequencies or changes to 
existing frequencies; 

5. Monitor, locate, coordinate and resolve radio frequency interference; 

6. Provide radio frequency and system performance or usage analysis; 

7. Provide radio or microwave infrastructure engineering; 

8. FCC Part 90 radio frequency license monitoring, protection, and licensing services; 

9. FCC Part 91 Microwave frequency protection services; 

10. Attend EBRCSA meetings, National Public Safety Planning Advisory Committee Region 6 
Meetings, and other appropriate meetings and or conferences at the request of the Executive 
Director; 

11. Preparation and electronic filing of FCC applications; 

12. Preparation of other FCC documents and filings as directed by the Executive Director. 

13. Radio systems engineering; 

14. Oversight of projects pertaining to the EBRCSA system. 

 
C. Payment Provisions:  Contractor shall submit said invoices no later than 30 days after the end of the 

month in which the services upon which such demand is based were rendered. Subject to the payment 
limit set forth in Section 4 (Payment Limit) of this Contract, EBRCSA will pay Contractor for services 
rendered under this Contract at the rate of $215.00/hour in FY 2019/2020, $220.00/hour in FY 
2020/2021, and $225.00/hour in FY 2021/2022.  Subject to the Payment Limit, the Department may 
revise the foregoing payment provisions through an Administrative Amendment to this contract as 
provided by Section 10(b) of the attached General Conditions.  Contractor may pay fees on behalf of 
EBRCSA for registration, permits, and licenses related to EBRCSA’s radio frequency rights after 
receiving written approval from EBRCSA.  EBRCSA will reimburse Contractor for the payment of 
these fees in the amount of the payment, without markup.  Contractor will be reimbursed for incidental 
expenses such as mileage, copying costs, meals, etc. 

Page 4 of 11



 
 
EBRCSA GENERAL CONDITIONS     
  

 
 

 
Initials:   ________        ________     
    Contractor       EBRCSA      

 
General Conditions 

  
 

1. Compliance with Law.  Contractor is subject to and must comply with all applicable federal, 
state, and local laws and regulations with respect to its performance under this Contract, 
including but not limited to, licensing, employment, and purchasing practices; and wages, hour, 
and conditions of employment, including nondiscrimination. 
 

2. Inspection.  Contractor’s performance, place of business, and records pertaining to this 
Contract are subject to monitoring, inspection, review and audit by authorized representatives of 
EBRCSA, the State of California, and the United States Government. 
 

3. Records.  Contractor must keep and make available for inspection and copying by authorized 
representatives of EBRCSA, the State of California, and the United States Government, the 
Contractor’s regular business records and such additional records pertaining to this Contract as 
may be required by EBRCSA. 
 

4. Retention of Records. Contractor must retain all documents pertaining to this Contract for five 
years from the date of submission of Contractor’s final payment demand or final Cost Report; for 
any further period that is required by law; and until all federal/state audits are complete and 
exceptions resolved for this Contract’s funding period. Upon request, Contractor must make 
these records available to authorized representatives of EBRCSA, the State of California, and the 
United States Government. 
 

5. Access to Books and Records of Contractor, Subcontractor. Pursuant to Section 1861(v)(1) 
of the Social Security Act, and any regulations promulgated thereunder, Contractor must, upon 
written request and until the expiration of five years after the furnishing of services pursuant to 
this Contract, make available to EBRCSA, the Secretary of Health and Human Services, or the 
Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, this Contract and books, 
documents, and records of Contractor necessary to certify the nature and extent of all costs and 
charges hereunder. 

Further, if Contractor carries out any of the duties of this Contract through a subcontract with a 
value or cost of $10,000 or more over a twelve-month period, such subcontract must contain a 
clause to the effect that upon written request and until the expiration of five years after the 
furnishing of services pursuant to such subcontract, the subcontractor must make available to 
EBRCSA, the Secretary, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representa-
tives, the subcontract and books, documents, and records of the subcontractor necessary to verify 
the nature and extent of all costs and charges thereunder. 

This provision is in addition to any and all other terms regarding the maintenance or retention of 
records under this Contract and is binding on the heirs, successors, assigns and representatives of 
Contractor. 
 

6. Reporting Requirements.  Pursuant to Government Code section 7550, Contractor must include 

Page 5 of 11



 
 
EBRCSA GENERAL CONDITIONS     
  

 
 

 
Initials:   ________        ________     
    Contractor       EBRCSA      

 
General Conditions 

in all documents and written reports completed and submitted to EBRCSA in accordance with 
this Contract, a separate section listing the numbers and dollar amounts of all contracts and 
subcontracts relating to the preparation of each such document or written report. This section 
applies only if the Payment Limit of the Contract exceeds $5,000. 
 

7. Termination and Cancellation.  

a. Written Notice. This Contract may be terminated by either party, in its sole discretion, upon 
thirty-day advance written notice thereof to the other, and may be cancelled immediately by 
written mutual consent. 

b. Failure to Perform. EBRCSA, upon written notice to Contractor, may immediately 
terminate this Contract should Contractor fail to perform properly any of its obligations 
hereunder. In the event of such termination, EBRCSA may proceed with the work in any 
reasonable manner it chooses. The cost to EBRCSA of completing Contractor’s performance 
will be deducted from any sum due Contractor under this Contract, without prejudice to 
EBRCSA’s rights to recover damages. 

c. Cessation of Funding. Notwithstanding any contrary language in Paragraphs 5 and 11, in 
the event that federal, state, or other non- EBRCSA funding for this Contract ceases, this 
Contract is terminated without notice. 

8. Entire Agreement. This Contract contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the 
parties. Except as expressly provided herein, no other understanding, oral or otherwise, regarding 
the subject matter of this Contract will be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 

9. Further Specifications for Operating Procedures.  Detailed specifications of operating 
procedures and budgets required by this Contract, including but not limited to, monitoring, 
evaluating, auditing, billing, or regulatory changes, may be clarified in a written letter signed by 
Contractor and EBRCSA's Executive Director, or designee, on whose behalf this Contact is 
made. No written clarification prepared pursuant to this Section will operate as an amendment to, 
or be considered to be a part of, this Contract. 

10. Modifications and Amendments. 

a. General Amendments. In the event that the Payment Limit of this Contract is $100,000 or 
less, this Contract may be modified or amended only by a written document executed by 
Contractor and EBRCSA’s Executive Director, subject to any required state or federal 
approval. In the event that the Payment Limit of this Contract exceeds $100,000, this 
Contract may be modified or amended only by a written document executed by Contractor 
and EBRCSA, subject to any required state or federal approval. 

b. Minor Amendments. The Payment Provisions and the Service Plan may be amended by a 
written administrative amendment executed by Contractor and EBRCSA, subject to any 
required state or federal approval, provided that such administrative amendment may not 
increase the Payment Limit of this Contract or reduce the services Contractor is obligated to 
provide pursuant to this Contract.  

Page 6 of 11



 
 
EBRCSA GENERAL CONDITIONS     
  

 
 

 
Initials:   ________        ________     
    Contractor       EBRCSA      

 
General Conditions 

11. Disputes. Disagreements between EBRCSA and Contractor concerning the meaning, 
requirements, or performance of this Contract shall be subject to final written determination by 
the Executive Director of EBRCSA, or his designee, or in accordance with the applicable 
procedures (if any) required by the state or federal government. 

12. Choice of Law and Personal Jurisdiction.  

a. This Contract is made in Alameda County and is governed by, and must be construed in 
accordance with, the laws of the Stare of California.  

b. Any action relating to this Contract must be instituted and prosecuted in the courts of either 
Alameda County or Contra Costa County, in the State of California. 

13. Conformance with Federal and State Regulations and Laws.  Should federal or state 
regulations or laws touching upon the subject of this Contract be adopted or revised during the 
term hereof, this Contract will be deemed amended to assure conformance with federal or state 
requirements. 

14. No Waiver by EBRCSA. Subject to Paragraph 11. (Disputes) of these General Conditions, 
Inspections or approvals. Or statements by any officer, agent or employee of EBRCSA 
indicating Contractor’s performance or any part thereof complies with the requirements of this 
Contract, or acceptance of the whole or any part of said performance, or payments therefore, or 
any combination of these acts, do not relieve Contractor’s obligation to fulfill this Contract as 
prescribed; nor is EBRCSA thereby prevented from bringing any action for damages or 
enforcement arising from any failure to comply with any of the terms and conditions of this 
Contract.  

15. Subcontract and Assignment. This contract binds the heirs, successors, assigns and 
representatives of Contractor. Prior written consent of the Executive Director or his designee, 
subject to any required state or federal approval, is required before the Contractor may enter into 
subcontracts for any work contemplated under this Contract, or before the Contractor may assign 
this Contract or monies due or to become due, by operation of law or otherwise. 

16. Independent Contractor Status. The parties intend that Contractor, in performing the services 
specified herein, is acting as an independent contractor and that Contractor will control the work 
and the manner in which it is performed. This Contract is not to be construed to create the 
relationship between the parties of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture, or 
association. Additionally, Contractor is not entitled to participate in any pension plan, workers’ 
compensation plan, insurance, bonus, or similar benefits EBRCSA provides to its employees. In 
the event that EBRCSA exercises its right to terminate this Contract, Contractor expressly agrees 
that it will have no recourse or right of appeal under any rules, regulations, ordinances, or laws 
applicable to employees. 

17. Conflicts of Interest. Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state 
law or that would otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of its services 
hereunder. Contractor further covenants that in the performance of this Contract, no person 
having any such interests will be employed by Contractor. If requested to do so by EBRCSA, 

Page 7 of 11



 
 
EBRCSA GENERAL CONDITIONS     
  

 
 

 
Initials:   ________        ________     
    Contractor       EBRCSA      

 
General Conditions 

Contractor will complete a “Statement of Economic Interest” form and file it with EBRCSA and 
will require any other person doing work under this Contract to complete a “Statement of 
Economic Interest” form and file it with EBRCSA. Contractor covenants that Contractor, its 
employees and officials, are not now employed by EBRCSA and have not been so employed by 
EBRCSA within twelve months immediately preceding this Contract. Contractor will indemnify, 
defend, and hold EBRCSA harmless from any and all claims, liabilities, or damages resulting 
from or related to any and all alleged conflicts of interest. 

18. Confidentiality. Contractor agrees to comply and to require its officers, partners, associated, 
agents and employees to comply with all applicable state or federal statutes or regulations 
respecting confidentiality, including but not limited to, the identity of persons served under this 
Contract, their records, or services provided them, and assures that: 

a. All applications and records concerning any individual made or kept by Contractor or any 
public officer or agency in connection with administration of or relating to services provided 
under this Contract will be confidential, and will not be open to examination for any purpose 
not directly connected with the administration of such service. 

b. No person will publish or disclose or permit or cause to be published or disclosed, any list of 
persons receiving services, except as may be required in the administration of such service. 
Contactor agrees to inform all employees, agents and partners of the above provisions, and 
that any person knowingly and intentionally disclosing such information other than as 
authorized by law may be guilty of a misdemeanor. 

19. Nondiscriminatory Services. Contractor agrees that all goods and services under this Contract 
will be available to any qualified persons regardless of age, gender, race, religion, color, national 
origin, ethnic background, disability, or sexual orientation, and that none will be used, in whole 
or in part, for religious worship. 

20. Indemnification. Contractor will defend, indemnify, save, and hold harmless EBRCSA and its 
officers and employees from any and all claims, demands, losses, costs, expenses, and liabilities 
for any damages, fines, sickness, death or injury to person(s) or property, including any and all 
administrative fines, penalties or costs imposed as a result of an administrative or quasi-judicial 
proceedings, arising directly or indirectly from or connected with the services provided 
hereunder that are caused, or claimed or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, contractors, 
subcontractors, or any persons under its direction or control. If requested by EBRCSA, 
Contractor will defend any such suits at its sole cost and expense. If EBRCSA elects to provide 
its own defense, Contractor will reimburse EBRCSA for any expenditures, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees and costs, Contractor’s obligations under this section exist regardless of 
concurrent negligence or willful misconduct on the part of EBRCSA or any other person; 
provided, however, that Contractor is not required to indemnify EBRCSA for the portion of 
liability a court determines is attributable to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of 
EBRCSA, its officers and employees. This provision will survive the expiration or termination of 
this Contract. 

21. Insurance. During the entire term of this Contract any extension or modification thereof, 

Page 8 of 11



 
 
EBRCSA GENERAL CONDITIONS     
  

 
 

 
Initials:   ________        ________     
    Contractor       EBRCSA      

 
General Conditions 

Contractor shall keep in effect insurance policies meeting the following insurance requirements 
unless otherwise expressed in the Special Conditions: 

a. Commercial General Liability Insurance. For all contracts where the total payment limit 
of the contract is $500,000 or less, Contractor will provide commercial general liability 
insurance, including coverage for business losses and for owned and non-owned 
automobiles, with a minimum combined single limit coverage of $500,000 for all damages, 
including consequential damages, due to bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death to any 
person or damaged ton or destruction of property, including the loss of use thereof, arising 
from each occurrence. Such insurance must be endorsed to include EBRCSA and its officers 
and employees as additional insureds as to all services performed by Contractor under this 
Contact. Said policies must constitute primary insurance as to Policies held by them or their 
self-insurance program(s) will not be required to contribute to any loss covered under the 
Contractor’s insurance policy or policies. For all contracts where the total payment limit is 
greater than $500,000, the aforementioned insurance coverage to be provided by Contractor 
must have a minimum combined single limit coverage of $1,000,000, and the Contractor 
must provide EBRCSA with a copy of the endorsement making EBRCSA an additional 
insured on all commercial general liability, worker’s compensation, and, if applicable, all 
professional liability insurance policies as required herein no later than the effective date of 
this Contract. 

b. Workers’ Compensation. Contractor must provide workers’ compensation insurance 
coverage for its employees. 

c. Certificate of Insurance.  The Contractor must provide EBRCSA with (a) certificates(s) of 
insurance evidencing liability and worker's compensation insurance as required herein no 
later than the effective date of this Contract. If Contractor should renew the insurance 
policy(ies) or acquire a new insurance policy(ies) or amend the coverage afforded through 
and endorsement to the policy at any time during the term of this Contract, then Contractor 
must provide (a) current certificate(s) of insurance. 

d. Additional Insurance Provisions. The insurance policies provided by the Contractor must 
include a provision for thirty (30) days written notice to EBRCSA before cancellation or 
material change of the above-specified coverage.  

22. Notices. All notices provided for by this Contract must be in writing and may be delivered by 
deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid. Notices to EBRCSA must be addressed to the 
Executive Director of EBRCSA. Notices to Contractor must be addressed to the Contractor’s 
address designated herein. The effective date of notice is the date of deposit in the mails or of 
other delivery, except that the effective date of notice to EBRCSA is the date of receipt by the 
Executive Director of EBRCSA. 

23. Primacy of General Conditions. In the event of a conflict  between the General Conditions and 
the Special Conditions, the General Conditions govern unless the Special Conditions of Service 
Plan expressly provide otherwise.  

24. Nonrenewal. Contractor understands and agrees that there is no representation, implication, or 

Page 9 of 11



 
 
EBRCSA GENERAL CONDITIONS     
  

 
 

 
Initials:   ________        ________     
    Contractor       EBRCSA      

 
General Conditions 

understanding that the services provided by the Contractor under this Contract will be purchased 
by EBRCSA under a new contract following expiration or termination of this Contact, and 
Contractor waives all rights or claims to notice or hearing respecting any failure to continue 
purchasing all or any such services from Contractor. 

25. Possessory Interest. If this Contract results in Contractor having possession of, claim or right to 
the possession of land or improvements, but does not vest ownership of the land or 
improvements in the same person, or if this Contract results in the placement of taxable 
improvements on tax exempt land (Revenue & Taxation Code Section 107), such interest or 
improvements may represent a possessory interest subject to property tax, and Contractor may be 
subject to the payment of property taxes levied on such interest. Contractor agrees that this 
provision complies with notice requirements of Revenue & Taxations Code Section 107.6, and 
waives all rights to further notice or to damages under that or any comparable statute.  

26. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Contract may be construed to create, and the 
parties do not intend to create, any rights in third parties. 

27. Copyrights and Rights in Data. Contractor will not publish or transfer any materials produced 
or resulting from activities supported by this Contract without the express written consent of the 
Executive Director. If any material is subject to copyright, EBRCSA reserves a royalty-free, 
nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, and use such materials, in whole or 
in part, and to authorize others to do so. 

28. Endorsements. In its capacity as a contractor with EBRCSA, Contractor will not publicly 
endorse or oppose the use any particular brand name or commercial product without the prior 
written approval of EBRCSA. In its EBRCSA-contractor capacity, Contractor will not publicly 
attribute qualities or lack of qualities to a particular brand name or commercial product in the 
absence of a well-established and widely accepted scientific basis for such claims or without the 
prior written approval of EBRCSA. In its EBRCSA-contractor capacity, Contractor will not 
participate or appear in any commercially produced advertisements designed to promote a 
particular brand name or commercial product, even if Contractor is not publicly endorsing a 
product, as long as the Contractor’s presence in the advertisement can reasonably be interpreted 
as an endorsement of the product by or on behalf of EBRCSA. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
Contractor my express its views on products to other contractors, the Board of Directors, 
EBRCSA officers, or others who may be authorized by the Board of Direcotrs or by law to 
receive such views. 

29. Required Audit. (A) If Contractor is funded by $500,000 or more in federal grant funds in any 
fiscal year from any source, Contractor must provide to EBRCSA, at Contractor’s expense, an 
audit conforming to the requirements set forth in the most current version of Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133. (B) If Contractor is funded by less than $500,000 in 
federal grant funds in any fiscal year from any source, but such grant imposes specific audit 
requirements, Contractor must provide EBRCSA with an audit conforming to those 
requirements. (C) If Contractor is funded by less than $500,000 in federal grant funds in any 
fiscal year from any source, Contractor is exempt from federal audit requirements for that year; 
however, Contractor’s records must be available for and audit may be required by, appropriate 

Page 10 of 11



 
 
EBRCSA GENERAL CONDITIONS     
  

 
 

 
Initials:   ________        ________     
    Contractor       EBRCSA      

 
General Conditions 

officials of the federal awarding agency, the General Accounting Office (GAO), the pass-through 
entity and/or EBRCSA. If any such audit is required, Contractor must provide EBRCSA with 
such audit. With respect to the audits specified n (A), (B) and (C) above, Contractor is solely 
responsible for arranging for the conduct of the audit, and for its cost. EBRCSA may withhold 
the estimated cost of the audit or 10 percent of the contract amount, whichever is greater, or the 
final payment, from Contractor until EBRCSA receives the audit from the Contractor.  

30. Authorizations. Contractor, or the representative(s) signing this Contract on behalf of 
Contractor, represents and warrants that it has full power and authority to enter into this Contract 
and to perform the obligations set forth herein.  

31. No Implied Waiver. The waiver by EBRCSA of any breach of any term or provision of this 
Contract will not be deemed to be a waiver of such term or provision or of any subsequent 
breach of the same or any other term or provision contained herein. 

Page 11 of 11



ATTACHMENT "B"





 
 

Participating agencies include Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the following cities and special districts: Alameda, Albany, Antioch, Berkeley, Brentwood, 
Clayton, Concord, Danville, Dublin, El Cerrito, Emeryville, Fremont, Hayward, Hercules, Lafayette, Livermore, Martinez, Moraga, Newark, Oakley, Pinole, 

Pittsburg, Pleasant Hill, Pleasanton, Richmond, San Leandro, San Pablo, San Ramon, Union City, Walnut Creek, East Bay Regional Park District, Kensington 
Police Community Services District, Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority, Moraga-Orinda Fire District, Rodeo-Hercules Fire District, San Ramon Valley 

Fire District, California Department of Transportation, Ohlone Community College District, Contra Costa Community College District, Dublin-San Ramon Services 
District and University of California, Berkeley 

 

Alameda County Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Services 
4985 Broder Blvd, Dublin CA  94568 ● (925) 803-7802 ● www.ebrcsa.org 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6. 

 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

MEETING DATE:  September 13, 2019 
 
TO:   Operations Committee 
   East Bay Regional Communications System Authority (EBRCSA) 
 
 
FROM: Tom McCarthy, Executive Director 
   East Bay Regional Communications System Authority 
 
 
SUBJECT: 10-Year Plan for East Bay Regional Communication System Authority 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Review the two proposals provided to the East Bay Regional Communications System Authority 
(EBRCSA) and, if Committee agrees, make a recommendation to the Executive Director on how 
to proceed in selecting between the two options presented in this staff report. 
 
SUMMARY/DISCUSSION:  
 
IdeasInspired has stated in their proposal that they have experience in the deployment of 3G and 
4G LTE technologies (core, transport and radio networks).  They have experience in radio site 
procurement, preparation, and maintenance. IdeasInspired has a comprehensive understanding of 
both broadband and Land Mobile Radio (LMR) networks and infrastructure.  IdeasInspired will 
include in the ten-year plan the future transition to the dedicated standards-based national 
broadband networks beginning to be offered by FirstNet/AT&T and Verizon. 
 
IdeasInspired proposes the following areas of focus for the improvement and evolution of the 
network over the next ten years: 
 

• Refresh and system upgrades including infrastructure and capital improvements 



 

 

• Infrastructure maintenance plan (such as tower, grounds, security, batteries, generator, 
fencing) 

• Regional expansion of the network and interoperability throughout the entire Bay Area 
region 

• Preparation of the P25 system for interoperability with broadband technology 
• Evolution plan of the backbone and backhaul network to efficiently accommodate the 

required capacity for public safety services 
• Identify possible new funding sources for further technology and services 

 
IdeasInspired has provided a detailed outline of the work and how the segments of the work will 
be put out to RFP in order to gather additional information.  The attached proposal (Attachment 
“A”) provided by IdeasInspired provides information as to the scope of the work proposed.   
 
IdeasInspired has estimated the cost of the 10-year plan to be $600,000.00, including expenses. 
 
CSI Telecommunications, Inc. is a team of Consulting Engineers who are subject matter experts 
in radio communication, microwave systems, and radio interference.  CSI has assisted EBRCSA 
in securing Radio Frequencies from the FCC for East Bay Regional Communication System 
Authority for several years.  CSI Engineers have also provided subject matter expertise in the 
transition to TDMA and other changes to the EBRCSA system.  
 
CSI has listed the scope of work as visits to the Master Site and 32 simulcast sites of EBRCSA to 
evaluate the conditions and infrastructure which support the Motorola equipment.  The 
inspection will include the emergency power, towers, cables, equipment, and shelters including 
the size/capacity of the shelter.  CSI will review the findings of the site visits with current 
inventory records as well as the Motorola Service Update Agreement (SUA) to determine which 
equipment needs to be addressed over the next ten years based on projected lifespan and vendor 
support.  CSI will provide EBRCSA a report of projected action items and their associated 
estimated costs. 
 
In addition, CSI has included two additional tasks.  The first is to analyze the traffic growth over 
the past three years to project estimated loading over the next ten years to identify any potential 
need to expand the infrastructure required for growth over the next ten years.  The second is to 
create coverage maps showing coverage within buildings and compare to what is anticipated in 
local growth plans and urban growth boundaries.  The maps will assist in determining what 
actional sites will be necessary in the next ten years. 
 
The attached proposal (Attachment “B”) provided by CSI provides additional information as to 
the scope of work proposed. 
 
CSI has estimated the cost of the 10-year plan to be $146,640.00 including expenses. 
 



 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
If the Operations Committee recommends entering into a contract with either IdeasInspired or 
CSI, a Budget Change will be necessary.  The approved EBRCSA Expenditure Detail for FY 
2019/2020 does not include the work to be performed in developing the 10-year plan. 
 
It is anticipated that a contract with either of the company’s will be covered by operating revenue 
and will not require an increase in the user fees for EBRCSA members.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is recommended that the Committee discuss and provide further direction to the Executive 
Director on how to proceed in the selection of the proposal for the 10 year-plan. 
 
 Attachments: 
 
Attachment “A” – IdeasInspired Proposal 
Attachment “B” – CSI Proposal 





































 
Participating agencies include Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the following cities and special districts: Alameda, Albany, Antioch, Berkeley, Brentwood, 

Clayton, Concord, Danville, Dublin, El Cerrito, Emeryville, Fremont, Hayward, Hercules, Lafayette, Livermore, Martinez, Moraga, Newark, Oakley, Pinole, 
Pittsburg, Pleasant Hill, Pleasanton, Richmond, San Leandro, San Pablo, San Ramon, Union City, Walnut Creek, East Bay Regional Park District, Kensington 
Police Community Services District, Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority, Moraga-Orinda Fire District, Rodeo-Hercules Fire District, San Ramon Valley 

Fire District, California Department of Transportation, Ohlone Community College District, Contra Costa Community College District, Dublin-San Ramon Services 
District and University of California, Berkeley 

 
 
 
  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7. 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING DATE:  September 13, 2019 
 
TO:   Operations Committee 
   East Bay Regional Communications System Authority (EBRCSA) 
 
 
FROM: Tom McCarthy, Executive Director 
   East Bay Regional Communications System Authority 
 
 
SUBJECT: Evaluation of the Executive Director 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Recommend a member of the Operations Committee to assist in the Evaluation of the Executive 
Director. 
 
SUMMARY/DISCUSSION:  
 
The evaluation of the Executive Director will be performed by a member of the Operations 
Committee, a member of the Operations Committee, and the Board Chair.  The Operations 
Committee will recommend a member to assist with the Evaluation of the Executive Director. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is recommended that the Operations Committee select and provide the name of the Operations 
Committee Member who will assist in the Evaluation of the Executive Director to the Board 
Chair. 


	OPS 09132019A
	Agenda Item 3 Redlined
	Agenda Item 3A
	Agenda Item 4 Redlined
	Agenda Item 4A and B
	Agenda Item 4C
	Agenda Item 5 Redlined
	Agenda Item 5A
	Agenda Item 5B
	Agenda Item 6 Redlined
	Agenda Item 6A
	Agenda Item 6B
	Agenda Item 7 Redlined



